
Date Published:6 September 2021     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Wednesday 15 September 2021 at 10.00 am

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Cllr Tony Dale

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 16)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2021. 

Cllr Tony Dale

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests by members.

Cllr Tony Dale

INFORMATION REPORTS

4  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

To receive an update on the work of the Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee. 

Cllr Matt 
Babbage

5  OVERVIEW OF GLOUCESTERSHIRE'S FARMING AND FOOD 
SECTOR (Pages 17 - 24)

To provide the Committee with an update on Gloucestershire’s farming 
and food sector, its contribution to the local economy and the challenges 
and opportunities ahead. 

Lizzie Dyer, Ben 
Dent, Jenny 
Phelps

6  GLOUCESTERSHIRE COVID-19 ECONOMIC RECOVERY PLANNING 

To receive an update on activities and proposals relating to the 
Gloucestershire economic recovery collaboration process, including 
updates on:

Colin Chick



    

 Gloucestershire County Council (GCC)’s Covid-19 Economic 
Dashboard;

 the Community Renewal Fund bid; and
 District councils to provide brief verbal updates at the meeting on 

their recovery plans, and on the outcome of Levelling Up bids.

Dashboard and information slides to follow.

7  GFIRST LEP UPDATE (Pages 25 - 32)

To receive an update on the work of the GFirst LEP, including the tourism 
strategy, and to introduce the new Chair of the GFirst LEP.

Dev 
Chakraborty

8  BUSINESS RATE POOL (Pages 33 - 40)

To receive an update on the Business Rate Pool.

Andrew 
Cummings

WORK PLAN

9  FORWARD (WORK) PLAN (Pages 41 - 44)

To note the Committee work plan, and to consider items for discussion at 
future meetings, including emerging SEDF proposals. 

Cllr Tony Dale

10  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the dates of meetings for the remainder of 2021 and for 
2022 (all meetings to start at 10am):  

17 November 2021
16 March 2022
19 May 2022
7 September 2022
16 November 2022.

Cllr Tony Dale

Membership –  Cllr Philip Robinson, Cllr Rowena Hay, Cllr Rob Bird, Cllr Richard Cook, Cllr Doina 
Cornell, Cllr Tony Dale (Chair) and Cllr Bernie O'Neill (Vice-Chair)
Dev Chakraborty

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Director of Policy, 
Performance and Governance, Rob Ayliffe 01452 328198 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Wednesday 9 June 2021 commencing at 10.00 am at the Council Chamber - 
Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Rob Bird
Cllr Richard Cook
Cllr Doina Cornell
Cllr Tony Dale (Chair)

Cllr Bernie O'Neill (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Philip Robinson
Dev Chakraborty

Substitutes: Cllr Victoria Atherstone

Apologies:

Officers: 

Cllr Rowena Hay

Mike Dawson (TBC) Jon McGinty (GCity)
Steve Mawson (GCC) Tracey Crews (CBC)
Colin Chick (GCC) Paul James (CDC)
Simon Excell (GCC) Peter Williams (FODDC)
Gillian Parkinson (GCC) Pete Carr (GFirst)
Angela Presdee (GCC) Steve Gardner-Collins (Visit Glos)
Laura Powick (GCC)
Andrew Cummings (SDC)
Kathy O’Leary (SDC)

282. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr Rowena Hay, Cheltenham Borough Council. Cllr 
Victoria Atherstone substituted for Cllr Hay at the meeting. 

283. ELECTION OF CHAIR 

Cllr Tony Dale, Cotswold District Council, was elected as Chair of the GEGJC for 
the 2021/22 Civic Year. 

284. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIR 

Cllr Bernie O’Neill, Forest of Dean District Council, was elected as Vice-Chair of the 
GEGJC for the 2021/22 Civic Year. 

285. MINUTES 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

The minutes of the meeting held on 10 March 2021 were agreed as a correct 
record. 

286. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 

287. GEGJC TERMS OF REFERENCE 

Gillian Parkinson, Head of Legal Services, GCC, reminded the Committee of the 
governance arrangements for the GEGJC and for its scrutiny.  

It was understood that the GEGJC was the only joint committee in Gloucestershire 
which had joint decision-making powers, and that one elected member from each 
partner authority had a vote on the Committee. The LEP representative on the 
Committee was non-voting. 

It was also understood that the initial five-year term for the GEGJC had been 
extended in September 2020 for a further 18 months until March 2022. 

 

288. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH AGENDA 

Colin Chick, Executive Director of Economy, Environment and Infrastructure, GCC, 
provided the Committee with an overview of the current economic growth agenda 
for Gloucestershire, on progress with the GCC Covid-19 recovery plan, and 
introduced members to the Gloucestershire economic growth dashboard.

The Committee was informed that unemployment in Gloucestershire had increased 
by just over 2 percent since the Covid-19 pandemic began to 4.5% in April 2021, 
and over 38,000 individuals were furloughed in March 2021. 

It was acknowledged that it was still not fully known as to what the County would be 
recovering from as the pandemic was still ongoing, however this may become 
clearer from September. 

Members noted that the GCC’s action plan for recovery was focused around three 
themes: people, place and connectivity; skills and employment; and infrastructure, 
economy and growth. 

Progress had been made against the action plan in the following areas:
 Social value - through early work with the Social Value Portal; 
 Anchor institutions - working with other organisations within 

Gloucestershire, such as the NHS, to address health inequalities; 
 Adult education - including the development of an employment and skills 

hub to enable individuals to find support in one place;

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

 Inclusive Employment - including the launch of the ‘Work for Me’ pilot 
and Inclusivity Works initiative, as well as the Kickstart Programme which 
had identified over 400 job opportunities; and

 Innovation Labs - locations had been identified in Tewkesbury, Stroud 
and Cheltenham for the further rollout of innovation labs and plans were 
being drawn up to commence refurbishment within the next two months 
at the Stroud and Tewkesbury locations.

Work was also ongoing to progress wider strategic proposals and developments 
including M5 Junction 10, the A417 Missing Link, and cycle routes between 
Cheltenham and Gloucester and beyond.

The Committee was provided with a demonstration of the economic recovery 
dashboard, which had been developed in order to monitor progress against key 
indicators, and would be presented at future GEGJC meetings to inform further 
discussions and decision-making. 

One member queried, in relation to social value, whether there were plans to 
address areas such as food poverty, growing your own food, and cooking skills, 
particularly as they were linked to issues such as healthy living and the impact this 
had on the NHS. In response, it was explained that this was an area that needed 
looking into.

It was requested that data relating to the Kickstart Programme and on businesses, 
including start-ups and failures, be included in the economic recovery dashboard. 

Clarification was sought regarding the data on job postings within the dashboard 
and whether this included postings from the hospitality sector.

Following a query on cycle ways in the Forest of Dean, it was understood that 
£1million had been invested into cycle ways at Lydney, and that other leisure 
schemes were being promoted. 

In response to a query on libraries and their use for developing skills and 
employability, it was explained that creative art programmes were already being run 
at libraries for young people, and that libraries were being used as centres for all 
ages. 

There was a further request for an update to be provided at a future meeting on the 
progress of the anchor institution task and finish group.

289. GLOUCESTERSHIRE COVID-19 ECONOMIC RECOVERY 

Mike Dawson, Chair of the GEGJC Senior Officer Group (SOG), introduced the 
item on Gloucestershire Covid-19 economic recovery, commenting on the strength 
of partnership between the district and county councils and GFirst LEP. Lead 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

officers from the district councils were then invited to provide an update on their 
economic recovery activity:

Cheltenham Borough Council

- The Cheltenham Economic Recovery task force had been established 
alongside sub groups working alongside specialists to engage with the 
key issues, including a tourism and visitor economy sub group; a skills 
sub group; and a sub group for reimagining the town centre.

- The Cyber development was progressing, with the appointment of the 
preferred developer taking place in July.

Cotswold District Council

- The Cotswold Economic Advisory Group had been established involving 
key stakeholders, businesses and institutions to oversee the action plan 
for the economic growth strategy. 

- Work was underway on the construction of the new digital skills centre in 
Cirencester.

- There was a focus on town centres with COVID recovery officers 
assisting the safe reopening of businesses, and business advisers 
providing support.

- Webinars had been provided to the hospitality sector and Cotswold 
Tourism had set up online digital training. 

- Welcome Back funding had been received which would be used to help 
high streets and local businesses reopen safely and successfully.

- ZeroAvia was opening a facility at Cotswold Airport to develop a 
hydrogen-powered aircraft, which would create 50 jobs and have the 
potential to grow should the product development be successful. 

Forest of Dean District Council

- A Forest Recovery Action Group had been established to address 
economic wellbeing, community wellbeing, and environment and climate 
change. 

- There was a focus on tourism and hospitality including looking at grants, 
and work to increase overnight stays in the district.

- A bid was being pursued for the Levelling Up fund for the regeneration of 
Cinderford town centre. 

Gloucester City Council

- The Council’s focus was on the repurposing and regeneration of the city 
centre.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

- A bid had been submitted to the Levelling Up fund to support this, and 
would go towards the repurposing of the Debenhams building, which had 
been purchased by the University of Gloucestershire and would form part 
of the wider regeneration of the town centre, as well as the development 
of the Forum and the repurposing of the Fleece building. 

Stroud District Council

- The Council was focussing on four overarching themes: economic 
wellbeing; community; market towns; and housing.

- These would be driven forward by the committee system at the Council. 
- The Land Release Fund bid had been successful to support the 

regeneration of Brimscombe Port. 
- Funding from the Zero Carbon Public Estate fund would be used to 

repurpose and retrofit public buildings and sites. 
- Funding from the Welcome Back fund would go towards providing footfall 

counters and supporting local businesses digitally. 
- A strategy to understand economic development for the council, including 

which sectors had been particularly affected by the pandemic and how 
resources could be best focussed, was being developed. 

Tewkesbury Borough Council

- The Council’s recovery plan was focused on tourism and long term 
essential infrastructure. 

- Business grants had been received and were being spent to support 
businesses across the district.

- The Growth Hub was reopening fully this month.
- A £2million scheme to improve Tewkesbury high street had been 

developed. 
- The Council was working with the local community to bring forward 

celebrations for Tewkesbury Abbey which was 900 years old this year.
- Tourism businesses were being supported where possible, and a large 

number of applications for events had been received.
- A large number of planning applications had also been received.

290. EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS STRATEGY 

Pete Carr, Director of Employment and Skills, GFirst LEP, updated the Committee 
on progress with the development of the Employment and Skills Strategy.

Members were informed that, since the last meeting, the focus had been on 
building up the employment and skills evidence base in order to progress the 
strategy, which would be evidence-led. 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

Members were advised that the strategy would be divided into three main parts: 
- Skills for businesses: The skills needs of local businesses needed to be 

highlighted and consideration needed to be given as to how sectors would 
be supported. The green skills agenda and cyber and digital skills agenda 
would also need to be incorporated. 

- Skills support for individuals: This would require buy-in from businesses to 
support individuals on initiatives ranging from career talks, through to 
Kickstart placements.

- Skills intelligence and investment: The Skills Portal and the Employment and 
Skills Hub would draw together resources to maximise the support and 
information offer. 

It was understood that further funding for the strategy was being pursued. 
Discussions with LEP business groups and the GEGJC SOG would be the starting 
point for the development of the strategy. 

The Committee noted that the strategy would be presented at its next meeting for 
its consideration. 

One member queried, referring to a shortage in chefs, how a shortage of skills in a 
range of sectors had been able to develop, and how this would be addressed? 

Pete Carr explained that a number of factors could affect a shortage in skills, and 
consideration needed to be given as to what the training needs were and how 
businesses could be helped with resources.

It was also suggested that the issues may not be due to a lack of skills, but because 
of working conditions and pay in certain sectors. It was also commented that any 
actions to address the issues should be strategic and focused on the long term 
skills needs. 

291. COMMUNITY RENEWAL FUND 

Colin Chick advised the Committee on the projects that formed Gloucestershire’s 
formal submission to the UK Community Renewal Fund. 

The UK Community Renewal Fund provided £220m of matched grant funding for 
revenue projects of up to £3m per place to be completed between August 2021 and 
the end of March 2022. Funding submissions were required to be submitted by 18 
June 2021. 

The Committee was informed that because the money would be shared across the 
Country and the Government had already earmarked 100 places for funding, the 
decision was made to focus on one or two good bids for Gloucestershire’s 
submission.

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

Following the completion of an assessment process, two projects would form part of 
Gloucestershire’s Community Renewal Fund Submission, as detailed in the report 
papers attached to the agenda. 

In response to a query as to whether GCC could engage with the districts on the 
projects, it was explained that the projects were county-wide and that the 
involvement of all partners would be key.

An update on the Community Renewal Fund bid would be provided at the next 
Committee meeting. 

292. PRESENTATION OF THE VISIT GLOUCESTERSHIRE TOURISM RECOVERY 
STRATEGY AND VISITOR ECONOMY ACTIVITY PLAN 

Steve Gardner-Collins, Director of the Visit Gloucestershire Partnership, gave a 
presentation to the Committee on the Visit Gloucestershire strategy and action plan. 

The Committee was informed that currently a number of organisations promoted 
tourism within the County, and that there were currently 35 different websites for 
people to research tourism activities in Gloucestershire, which could be confusing. 
The Visit Gloucestershire Partnership aimed to help grow Gloucestershire’s offer for 
tourists, addressing how the County is sold to them at the beginning through to the 
experience they have when visiting. 

It was explained that the strategy was aimed at encouraging visitors to stay longer 
in the County, across all areas of the Gloucestershire, and was aligned to the 
Gloucestershire 2050 agenda. Members noted that five outcomes had been 
identified as part of the strategy. 

Over the next few months, consideration would be given as to how the strategy 
would be delivered, including identifying any funding available for the project.  

One member queried whether it was realistic to expect visitors to stay in 
Gloucestershire longer than 1 or 2 nights. In response, it was explained that it was 
about creating opportunities for people to stay longer, such as creating itineraries, 
or promoting different types of holidays, such as activity holidays or wellbeing 
holidays, and bringing all that information together in one place.

In response to a query about job vacancies in hospitality not being filled, it was 
explained that there needed to be a change as to how jobs in this sector were 
viewed, and that young people needed to be encouraged that they could have a 
successful career in hospitality. 

One member asked whether Visit Gloucestershire had enough funding and whether 
its relationships with the district councils were strong. It was understood that Visit 
Gloucestershire was working sensitively in partnership with these organisations as 
they were responsible for tourism within their areas, and it was also noted that if 
tourism strategies were developed on a county-wide basis, more funding 
opportunities would be available.

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

Clarification was sought regarding another website with the address visit 
Gloucestershire. It was noted that this was run by an individual and that the Visit 
Gloucestershire Partnership visitor website was not yet consumer facing. 

It was suggested that the strong existing Cotswold tourism brand could be 
capitalised on as part of the strategy. In response, it was advised that as this 
branding was an asset, they needed to be careful not to overuse it and therefore 
devalue it. 

Clarification was also sought on the difference between a Strategic Management 
Organisation and a Destination Management Organisation. 

   

293. GFIRST LEP UPDATE 

Dev Chakraborty, Deputy Chief Executive of GFirst LEP, presented the Committee 
with an update on the work of the GFirst LEP.

Members were updated on progress with the five projects funded by the LEP’s 
successful bid to the Government’s Getting Building Fund. These projects would 
create over 800 new jobs, and of these projects, the Gloucestershire Applied Digital 
Skills Centre in Cirencester and the Construction Education Centre at Cinderford 
had started being built. 

The Committee, as informed earlier on in the meeting, was reminded that ZeroAvia 
was to open a major facility at Cotswold Airport as its base to develop a hydrogen-
electric powered aircraft. 

The County Section 151 officers  were thanked for supporting the pooling together 
of their Additional Restrictions Grant allocations in order to offer grants to SMEs to 
help them trade online. The promotional campaign for this would begin in July.

Finally, members were advised that recruitment was currently underway for the LEP 
Board as 5 private sector board members had reached the end of their terms. 

294. BUSINESS RATE POOL 

Andrew Cummings, Strategic Director of Resources, Stroud District Council, 
provided the Committee with an update on the Gloucestershire Business Rate Pool. 

Members were informed that 5 out of the 6 district councils had finalised their 
accounts for the year and that an estimated £800k would be transferred to the 
SEDF for 2020/21. 

The Pool would be continuing into 2021/22, and several major risk factors had been 
removed, including the challenge by NHS foundation trusts seeking charitable 

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

status. Additionally, it was clarified that legislation had been passed to prohibit 
Covid ‘Material Change in Circumstances’, which otherwise would have meant 
reductions in the levels of business rates collected and therefore impacted on the 
pool position.

Steve Mawson, S151 Officer at Gloucestershire County Council, expressed the 
view that the business rates pool model was not sustainable, and that it was 
unlikely the pool would stay long term. The Committee would be advised as soon 
as any announcements on changes to the system were made. 

Mike Dawson presented the request for SEDF funding to support transport 
modelling costs associated with local plan development and provide additional 
strategic planning resource at Gloucestershire County Council to support the 
development of all local plans and the delivery of major county growth projects.

It was explained that the transport modelling costs to the local planning authority 
were significant and a number of authorities had difficulties meeting these costs, 
which could impact on plans being delayed. It was also proposed that some of the 
funding be used by GCC to fund the employment of two planning officers on a fixed 
term basis.

A provision had been included whereby any money not spent would be given back 
to the SEDF, and should any further funding be required, a further request would 
need to be made for consideration by this Committee. It was clarified that the 
funding would be taken from the SEDF in one lump sum, and would be held by the 
individual planning authorities and by Tewkesbury for the JCS authorities. 

There was a query as to how this project would be funded if there were no pooling 
arrangements to call upon. In response it was understood that authorities would 
have to fund themselves, however this could result in delays to the planning 
process. It was also noted that the LEP match funding would remain in place this 
year and next year, although nationally there was to be a review of LEPS, at which 
point this funding may need to be reviewed. 

In response to a query, it was recognised that there were different transport models 
for different areas of the County which needed to be integrated. 

In response to a further query, it was clarified that costs had been worked out by 
GCC and the local planning authorities. Additionally, it was understood that 
currently, a consultant was paid to build and operate the transport models which 
was expensive, and a more financially sustainable option may need to be 
considered going forward.

On being put to a vote, it was 

RESOLVED to
 

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 10 -

Approve the proposals as set out in section four of the report, and that the 
associated costs are met from the Strategic Economic Development Fund.

295. FORWARD (WORK) PLAN 

Requests were made to consider the Employment and Skills Strategy, the outcome 
of the Government’s review of LEPs, and feedback on the Levelling Up bids at the 
next Committee meeting in September. 

296. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The Committee noted the meeting dates for the remainder of 2021.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12.55 pm

Page 10



Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee actions – 9 June 2021

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

149. Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth 
Agenda

To include data relating to the Kickstart 
Programme in the economic recovery dashboard.

Colin Chick To be included in the 
dashboard by the 15 
September 2021 GEGJC 
meeting. 

263. Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth 
Agenda 

To confirm whether hospitality job postings have 
been included in the data on job postings in the 
economic recovery dashboard. 

Colin Chick The job postings data 
includes all sectors, with the 
caveat being they have to be 
advertised online in order to 
be picked up. We know some 
sectors advertise less online 
and hospitality is one of 
those, so it may be an under-
estimate. Unfortunately it’s 
not possible to break postings 
down by sector, but the slide 
deck does show a breakdown 
by the occupations showing 
the greatest change and you 
can see a decline in some 
occupations in the hospitality 
sector including chefs. 

350. Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth 
Agenda 

To include data on businesses, including data on 
business start ups and failures, in the economic 
recovery dashboard. 

Colin Chick Data on business births and 
deaths is published annually; 
the latest data currently 
available is from 2019. We 
are expecting the data to be 
updated in November (giving 
us data for 2020), but the 
release date is provisional 
and is sometimes subject to 
change. Therefore at this 

P
age 11



moment in time it will not be 
possible to include this in the 
dashboard. 

4 Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth 
Agenda

To update the Committee on the progress of the 
anchor institution task and finish group. 

Colin Chick Update on the anchor 
institutions work:

The Task and Finish group 
met last autumn but has not 
needed to meet again.

The PWC hub was tasked by 
GHWB to undertake the 
following:

-     Develop a set of 
principles to set our 
what anchor 
institutions do – 
and how these can 
help to address the 
causes of health 
inequalities 

-          Undertake high 
level mapping of 
local activities that 
GHWB member 
organisations are 
undertaking that 
would be classed 
as anchor 
institution activity 
(though might not 

P
age 12



be explicitly 
labelled as such)

-          Undertake a 
local case study 
using a social 
return on 
investment tool  - 
which will be 
adapted to enable 
local orgs to pick 
up and use to 
support planning / 
evaluation of social 
value

-          Propose a way 
forward for 
developing an 
anchor institutions 
approach to 
addressing health 
inequalities 

  Progress to date:

 Principles developed and 
approved by GHWB in March 
and shared with ICS Board in 
April

Baseline mapping undertaken 
– many local examples of 
anchor institution activity 

P
age 13



 Social return case study – 
we’ve undertake a social 
value evaluation of the No 
Child Left Behind programme 
in Cheltenham – this is 
currently being written up and 
the tool adapted for local use.

  Next steps:

We’re taking a proposal to 
GHWB in July to propose that 
we run an event for GHWB 
members and representatives 
from local anchor institutions; 
this will be both a launch and 
a call to action; we will use 
this to share examples of 
good practice and resources; 
and to agree with local 
organisations what additional 
support they need to embed 
the approach.

565. Gloucestershire 
Economic Growth 
Agenda

To circulate summary notes of this item and the 
Gloucestershire Covid-19 Economic Recovery 
item after the meeting. 

Laura Powick Circulated on 22 June 2021. 

6 66. Employment and 
Skills Strategy

To present the Employment and Skills Strategy at 
the next Committee meeting.

Pete Carr To be presented at the 
meeting on 15 September 
2021.

767. Community Renewal 
Fund 

To provide an update on the outcome of the 
Community Renewal Fund bid at the next 

Colin Chick To be presented at the 
meeting on 15 September 

P
age 14



meeting. 2021. 

868. Business Rate Pool Strategic Planning for Growth – SEDF Bid

 RESOLVED to
 
Approve the proposals as set out in section four 
of the report, and that the associated costs are 
met from the Strategic Economic Development 
Fund.

Mike Dawson Completed. 

969. Forward (Work) Plan To add to the work plan for the meeting on 15 
September 2021:
- Employment and Skills strategy
- Outcome of the Government’s review of LEPs
- Feedback on Levelling Up bids

Laura Powick Completed. 

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Meeting GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE 
(GEGJC) 

Report Author Colin Chick
Executive Director, Gloucestershire County Council
Email: colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Lizzie Dyer
Consultant to the Gloucestershire Food Strategy 

Background 
documents

Report and presentation 

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

All references are included in footnotes.

Main Consultees This report has been produced by and for the Gloucestershire Food 
Partnership.  

Purpose of report For information
To update the Joint Committee on the county’s farming and food 
sector, its contribution to the local economy and the challenges and 
opportunities ahead. 

Recommendations The Committee notes the content of the paper and comments on 
progress so far. 

Reason for 
recommendations

For information 
 

Resource 
Implications

There are no further resource implications. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

mailto:colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


2

1.1 Background

This paper seeks to give an overview of the County’s farming and food sector as 
presented by the Gloucestershire Food Partnership. 

1.2 Context

The Gloucestershire agri-food sector is a significant contributor to the 
Gloucestershire economy in relation to its contribution to gross value added as well 
as employment base in the county. It has recently faced some significant challenges 
in changes to government policy largely but not exclusively as a result of Brexit. This 
paper and appendix from the Gloucestershire Food Partnership sets out core facts 
about the sector, a understanding of the strategic partners involved in supporting and 
developing the sector as well as a summary of the challenges and opportunities 
facing the sector and its supply chain. 

1.3 Core facts about the sector:

 The Gloucestershire agri-food sector representing the “end to end” food chain 
employs just over 50,000 people, or 14.9 % of the workforce compared to 
13.2% nationally (DEFRA (2018), Agriculture in the UK 2017)

 In 2019, the agriculture, forestry, fishing, mining and quarrying sectors 
contribute around £187 million to Gloucestershire's GVA, this equates to 
around 1.0% of total GVA which is more than the national average of 0.7% 
(Source: Source: Regional gross value added (balanced) by industry, ONS)

 In 2019 there were around 7,000 people working in the agriculture sector, 
equating for 2.3% of employment, this is higher than the national average of 
1.3% (Source: BRES, ONS)1

 In 2016 there were 2,529 farm holdings in Gloucestershire, up from 2,449 in 
2013. This means the total farmed area in 2016 equated to 193,304 hectares, 
this was down from 204,345 in 2013. (Source: Structure of the agricultural 
industry in England and the UK at June, DEFRA)

1.4 Strategic Partners

As identified in the evidence base for the local industrial strategy, there are a number 
of local strategic partners working to advance and support the wider sector. It 
identifies:

Campden BRI is a world-leading research association in the agri-food space and 
member of the South West AgriTech Network. This network was inaugurated at 
Farm491 in Summer 2018 to connect research institutions across the South West 
with technological innovations and industry partners in agriculture. 

Hartpury University and College Hartpury University and College is a specialist 

1 Please note this is on a different basis to GVA which covers a broader sector including 
forestry, fishing, mining etc.

Page 18



3

provider of high-quality applied education, training and research. Their industry-led 
research and commercial partnerships within the specialisms of animal, in particular 
equine, and sport, result in innovative solutions, which impact and influence locally, 
nationally and internationally the development of these same sectors. In addition, the 
Hartpury Agri-Tech Centre, provides farming professionals with access to the latest 
livestock technology, expertise and ideas, ensuring Hartpury University and College 
is at the heart of innovation in the agricultural sector. 

Royal Agricultural University (RAU) Innovation has been central to the RAU’s 
purpose since 1845 and their alumni lead transformational change across the land-
based sector. With the challenges of Brexit and food security, the RAU has never 
been more relevant, continuing to provide innovative, sustainable solutions for land 
managers, food producers and the wider rural economy. This is achieved through (i) 
innovative education programmes, supported by a government post-Brexit strategic 
initiative, co-designed with industry to ensure that businesses have the skills needed 
to face the future, (ii) a nationally recognised centre of excellence for student 
entrepreneurship, (iii) applied research, and (iv) a Knowledge Exchange Hub that 
pioneers farmer-led innovation and supports the agricultural and wider business 
sectors through the LEP-funded Farm491 project, as well as businesses of all types 
through the Cirencester Growth Hub.2

2.5 Wider strategic activity to support the plan and further opportunities

The rest of this document sets out the potential outcomes that could be delivered as 
a result of greater support to the sector, the current challenges facing the sector and 
the opportunities that are presented as a result. 

3.1 Gloucestershire Food Partnership’s briefing note on the County’s Farming and 
Food Sector produced for the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 
Committee
This briefing summarises:

– The direct and indirect economic contribution made by Gloucestershire’s agri-
food sector;

– The opportunity to align initiatives and so simultaneously increase this 
contribution while also achieving environmental and social outcomes;

– Current challenges facing the sector, and
– Some of the opportunities to tackle those challenges and deliver multiple 

outcomes.

Agri-food Sector’s Current Economic Contribution
Gloucestershire’s agri-food sector employs over 50,000 people - 14.9% of the 
workforce - and generated a Gross Value Add of £1.39b in 2017, or 8.8% of the local 
economy3. These are both higher than the national average, demonstrating that the 
County has competitive advantage upon which to build.  

More specifically, Gloucestershire’s agriculture supports 6,280 jobs and generated 
£333m/year in 2017, with crops accounting for £116m and livestock £181m. This 
output translates into a GVA of £102m after direct production costs.

2 gloucestershire_five-foundations-of-productivity_evidence-report_2019-updated.pdf (gfirstlep.com)
3 Collison et al (2019) The Scale and Impact of the Farming, Food, Drink & Rural Economy in Gloucestershire: 
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/the-gloucestershire-agrifood-and-rural-economy-final-report-apr-
2019.pdf

Page 19

https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2020/gloucestershire_five-foundations-of-productivity_evidence-report_2019-updated.pdf
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/the-gloucestershire-agrifood-and-rural-economy-final-report-apr-2019.pdf
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/the-gloucestershire-agrifood-and-rural-economy-final-report-apr-2019.pdf


4

As an example of the sector’s indirect economic benefits, much of Gloucestershire’s 
tourism is driven by its attractive landscapes. In particular, it is vital to The Cotswolds’ 
economy where tourists spent over £326m in 2017, and where tourism employs over 
14% of the workforce. Since farmers manage 61% of the County’s landscape, their 
practices are critical to sustaining a countryside that appeals to tourists. Tourism also 
makes a direct contribution to the sector, with 32% of tourists’ spending in 
Gloucestershire being devoted to food and drink, generating £340m annually.

3.2
Scope to achieve multiple, complementary outcomes
In addition to economic development, the County’s agri-food sector has the potential 
to contribute to some of the greatest environmental and social challenges we face:

 Climate Change: GCC has set a target of reducing the County’s GHG 
emissions by 80% by 2030.  Since globally 26-34% of emissions come from 
the agri-food system4, and 10% of UK emissions come from agriculture 
alone, the sector has huge potential to contribute to this target through both 
reducing emissions and sequestrating carbon.

 Social inequality: In some parts of the County, over 10% of adults 
experience hunger because they cannot afford or are unable to access food5.

 Health: More than 60% of adults in Gloucestershire are overweight, with 
nearly half of them being obese6.  In addition to basic public health concerns, 
there are public finance consequences because people with severe obesity 
are three times more likely to need social care than those with a healthy 
weight.  We need to ask how investments in improving the County’s health 
and eating habits can involve local farmers and food businesses.  

 Nature recovery: The UK is in the bottom 10% of countries in terms of 
biodiversity loss7.   The Environment Bill is introducing duties on local 
authorities to restore nature, including through Local Nature Recovery 
Strategies and biodiversity net gain8.  Farmers and other land managers will 
be central to developing and delivering these policies, and downstream 
businesses and consumers will be critical to rewarding them for doing so by 
choosing their products.

3.3
Current Challenges
England’s new agricultural funding scheme: This will end payment for land ownership 
(the Basic Payment Scheme or BPS), and significantly expand “public money for 
public good” support by funding activities which deliver better air and water quality, 
thriving wildlife, better soil health, reduced flooding and mitigating climate change.  
While these outcomes should be welcome, the transition is creating uncertainty and 
anxiety, and may herald restructuring. By 2028, ending BPS will remove nearly £40m 
of support every year for Gloucestershire farmers9, with 600 of our smaller farms 

4 Ritchie (2021) How much of global greenhouse gas emissions come from food?  
https://ourworldindata.org/greenhouse-gas-emissions-food
5 University of Sheffield (2021) UK Adult Food Insecurity: https://www.sheffield.ac.uk/news/new-map-shows-
where-millions-uk-residents-struggle-access-food
6 GCC Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee: Public Health Update by Executive Director of 
Adult Social Care and Public Health, 6 July 2021
7 Natural History Museum (2020) UK has led the world in destroying the natural environment: 
https://www.nhm.ac.uk/discover/news/2020/september/uk-has-led-the-world-in-destroying-the-natural-
environment.html
8 Environment Bill Nature and Conservation Covenants: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/environment-bill-2020/10-march-2020-nature-and-conservation-
covenants-parts-6-and-7
9 University of Gloucestershire (2021) Assessing the impact of Agricultural Transition in Gloucestershire

Page 20

https://ourworldindata.org/greenhouse-gas-emissions-food
https://www.sheffield.ac.uk/news/new-map-shows-where-millions-uk-residents-struggle-access-food
https://www.sheffield.ac.uk/news/new-map-shows-where-millions-uk-residents-struggle-access-food
https://www.nhm.ac.uk/discover/news/2020/september/uk-has-led-the-world-in-destroying-the-natural-environment.html
https://www.nhm.ac.uk/discover/news/2020/september/uk-has-led-the-world-in-destroying-the-natural-environment.html
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/environment-bill-2020/10-march-2020-nature-and-conservation-covenants-parts-6-and-7
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/environment-bill-2020/10-march-2020-nature-and-conservation-covenants-parts-6-and-7


5

losing on average £16,000/year, and larger farms losing £50,000/year. While some of 
these losses will be offset by the introduction of the Environmental Land 
Management Scheme from 2024, more than 50% of the BPS reductions will have 
been implemented by then, and as yet there is no clarity over how the new scheme 
will operate, and no expectation that levels of support will cover the loss of BPS, 
especially given the post-pandemic state of public finances.  These changes 
jeopardise many farming businesses’ viability, with the inevitable economic, social, 
landscape and environmental impacts.  This threat comes on top of recent 
consolidation, with the number of holdings halved from close to 5,000 in 1985 to 
about 2,500 in 2016, and with around half of farming businesses already having 
diversified.

Local business support provision: Currently, local business support offered via 
Growth Hubs and LEPs excludes farmers.  The past and current programme of 
general business support delivered by the Growth Hub is funded by the EU Rural 
Development Fund.  Primary producers are not eligible for support from these 
programmes.

Capital Expenditure Support: There is no replacement for farmers’ capex support, 
which previously was available to rural businesses under programmes like the EU’s 
LEADER programme10.

Climate change adaptation: Even if Net Zero commitments are met, the County’s 
climate will change unavoidably, and farmers will need new techniques to adapt their 
practices and crops to these new conditions.

Labour shortages (especially for horticulture): as a result of the end to free 
movement, disbandment of Seasonal Agricultural Workers Scheme and as a 
consequence of travel restrictions during the pandemic.

3.4 Current Opportunities 
Gloucestershire has leading expertise in the agri-tech sector and several specialist 
research organisations11.  

This provides a pathway to enlarging both export and domestic markets. There are 
particular opportunities for growth in food processing12. In addition, recent analysis 
concluded that expanding local food chains could create 200,000 jobs nationally13.  
As identified above, with strategic coherence and coordinated delivery we can 
achieve transformational systemic change across economic development; responses 
to climate, nature and health crises, and social policies, especially levelling-up.  
Initiatives could include:

Improving business support to the farming sector: Different farm business will 
respond to the challenges summarised above in different ways, and there is no single 
pathway to a more secure financial future.  Equally, farming for the environment and 

10 Cotswold LEADER: https://www.cotswoldsaonb.org.uk/looking-after/cotswolds-leader/; Forest of Dean and 
Tewkesbury LEADER: http://forestandtewksleader.co.uk
11 For example, Farm 491, Campden BRI, Royal Agricultural University, Hartpury University, Countryside and 
Community Research Institute at the University of Gloucestershire, FarmEd
12 Collison et al (2019) The Scale and Impact of the Farming, Food, Drink & Rural Economy in Gloucestershire: 
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/the-gloucestershire-agrifood-and-rural-economy-final-report-apr-
2019.pdf
13 Sustain (2021) The case for local food: building better local food systems to benefit society and nature: 
https://www.sustainweb.org/publications/the-case-for-local-food/

Page 21

https://www.cotswoldsaonb.org.uk/looking-after/cotswolds-leader/
http://forestandtewksleader.co.uk/
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/the-gloucestershire-agrifood-and-rural-economy-final-report-apr-2019.pdf
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/the-gloucestershire-agrifood-and-rural-economy-final-report-apr-2019.pdf
https://www.sustainweb.org/publications/the-case-for-local-food/


6

nature as well as for food will require our farmers to acquire new knowledge and 
skills if they are to access the grants upon which for many their viability will depend.  
What is needed is a range of training, mentoring and small capex grants to support 
farming businesses to diversify, to serve established/new markets and to adapt their 
practices to deliver public goods.

Innovative partnerships to enhance Gloucestershire’s food supply chains 
through:
 Opening public procurement and anchor institutions’14 contracts to SME 

suppliers via the Dynamic Procurement Pilot for the South West initiative.
 Supporting enterprises that look to solve barriers to more localised food supply 

chains including: lack of processing capacity, low carbon local distribution 
channels and the helping Gloucestershire businesses access to new and 
existing value-added markets.

 Developing new pathways into careers in the farming and food sectors, 
including changing perceptions of those roles and providing skills training, and 
so retaining more young people in the County.

 Building baseline data for farming and environmental management in 
Gloucestershire including: food production, farming enterprises, processing, 
land use and land management data.

Encouraging more demand for Gloucestershire produce: by introducing a 
proven, council-led accreditation scheme based on Produced in Northumberland15, 
giving consumers and retailing and foodservice sectors confidence that they are 
buying and selling/serving authentic local produce.

Increasing the demand for Gloucestershire’s produce while improving 
children’s health: by implementing the tried and tested Food for Life (FFL) model16 
in primary schools outside the GCC catering contract.  Adopting a whole school 
approach to food education, the scheme not only drives demand for local and more 
ecological produce, it also contributes to the public health childhood obesity agenda.  
Currently, 1.7million FFL certified meals are served nationally every day in term time, 
and pupils in FFL schools eat around a third more fruit and vegetables at school, and 
significantly more fruit and vegetables at home, and 45% of their parents’ report 
eating more vegetables as a result of FFL.

Ensuring climate crisis response and nature recovery are interwoven into 
these and other initiatives: Gloucestershire has been leading the way on the 
environment for nearly 20 years, hosting one of the first Heritage Lottery Landscape 
scale partnership project in 2002.  This Caring for the Cotswold project gave rise to 
the development of integrated local delivery, a framework for coordinating local 
environmental action, with all partners and stakeholders working in support.  The 
approach, now evaluated as an international case study of best practice, has been 
strengthened by the ethos of valuing local knowledge from farming and local 
communities and partnership working through the Gloucestershire Local Nature 
Partnership. The approach has been further trialled in Gloucestershire for the new 

14 An anchor institution a large employer or large land/asset owner with significant spending power.  
Consequently, they can significantly influence the social, economic and environmental conditions in an area, 
acting as an ‘anchor’ to the health and prosperity of local people and communities.  In particular, these 
institutions are unlikely to move (for example, schools, hospitals, prisons, universities and companies with large 
fixed assets) and so give suppliers more confidence in the long term business opportunity.  Whether public 
authorities keen to achieve multiple outcomes from taxpayers’ money, or private companies looking to fulfil their 
CSR commitments, their procurement has the potential to significantly enhance their local area.
15 https://producedin.northumberland.gov.uk/Home.aspx
16 https://www.foodforlife.org.uk/schools

Page 22

https://producedin.northumberland.gov.uk/Home.aspx
https://www.foodforlife.org.uk/schools


7

Environmental Land Management Scheme, which has demonstrated how groups of 
farmers can come together to help communities build resilience for food security, 
biodiversity recovery, flooding, air quality and health and well-being17. By building soil 
health through increasing organic matter and sequestering carbon, farmers can be 
part of the partnership delivering multiple ecosystem services and public goods from 
their land. Working with scientists, there is scope for systemic alignment to resolve 
food equality and produce nutrient-dense food from thriving businesses working in 
harmony with nature.

17 https://www.fwagsw.org.uk/environmental-land-management-system-trial 

Page 23

https://www.fwagsw.org.uk/environmental-land-management-system-trial


This page is intentionally left blank



GFirst LEP Update for GEGJC meeting 15th September, 2021
Prepared by Dev Chakraborty (Deputy Chief Executive GFirst LEP)

1) GFirst LEP appoint Ruth Dooley as new Chair

Gloucestershire’s Local Enterprise Partnership, GFirst LEP, is pleased to announce that it has 
appointed Ruth Dooley as its new Chair. This is the first ever change in its leadership as Dr 
Diane Savory OBE steps down after 10 years at the helm. 

Ruth Dooley is a partner and head of the litigation support team at Hazlewoods LLP, an 
accountancy firm based in Cheltenham and Staverton with 412 staff and partners.  She is a 
chartered accountant and tax adviser for a wide range of companies and private clients and 
is a previous winner of South West Accountant of the Year.  During her thirty years in 
Gloucestershire, she has contributed to the Prince’s Trust, Fredericks Gloucestershire, BBC 
Radio Gloucestershire, the Honourable Company of Gloucestershire and is a Visiting Fellow 
at the University of Gloucestershire.

Ruth was previously a Growth Hub Board member and has been a GFirst LEP Board member 
for the last two years.

Commenting on her appointment, Ruth said; “I am honoured and excited to be taking on 
the role of Chair. In the decade since it was established, GFirst LEP has secured more than 
£112million in capital funding to invest across the county, it has launched a hugely 
successful Growth Hub network along with a whole host of fantastic projects including the 
Gloucester Transport Hub, the Gloucester M5 Services, Cyber Central in Cheltenham, Farm 
491 in Cirencester and the GREEN Skills centre in Berkeley. I am determined that the LEP will 
build on this impressive legacy over the comings years, continuing to deliver the sustainable 
economic growth that Gloucestershire needs and deserves.”

David Owen CEO of GFirst LEP, “It is fantastic that Gloucestershire will be able to draw on 
the wealth of experience and vision from Ruth, I am delighted to welcome her as Chair of 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



the LEP Board and look forward to delivering on our projects and priorities collaboratively 
for the county.” 

“I would also like to take this opportunity to thank Diane for her passion and commitment 
over the past decade, she has been a truly inspirational for Gloucestershire, the LEP team 
and for me personally.”

2) Changes to the LEP Board

Four new Board members have also been appointed to the LEP Board.

• Tyler Attwood, Founder/Director of Your Next Move Ltd
•  Joe Roberts, Director of Roberts Limbrick Ltd 
• Nicola Bird, Founder and Managing Director of AccXel Ltd; Safety and Business 
Development Director of Bell Contracting 
• Matt Charman, Head of Public Sector Marketing at Google 

On the 31st August 2021 four current private sector board members came to the end of 
their permitted terms on the board: Dr Diane Savory, Adam Starkey, Mike Warner and Rob 
Loveday. Lorrin White, due to changes in personal circumstances, also decided to step down 
from the board at the same time. 

The recruitment process for new private sector board members took place between April 
and July of 2021. After an extensive selection process, four exceptional candidates have 
been appointed and will serve a first term on the GFirst LEP Board from 1st September 2021 
to 31st August 2024. 

David Owen, CEO GFirst LEP said, “We were overwhelmed with both the quality and 
quantity of the applicants looking to join the GFirst LEP Board. Of course we are sad to have 
to say goodbye to Diane, Adam, Mike, Rob and Lorrin who collectively have served nearly 35 

Page 26



years on the GFirst LEP Board and have been fantastic assets to the Board, but I look 
forward to working with our new Board members and I’m sure their energy and enthusiasm 
will be invigorating.”

There have also been changes in Local Authority Membership of the GFirst LEP Board.
Steve Jordan from Cheltenham Borough Council stood down from the board following the 
local elections in May 2021. District authorities have approved the appointment of Doina 
Cornell, Leader of Stroud District Council as their representative and the appointment of 
Richard Cook, Leader of Gloucester City Council as observer to the board.

3) GFirst LEP Capital Projects update – to July 31st, 2021

Getting Building Fund

GFirst LEP successfully bid for £11.3 million from the Government’s ‘Getting Building Fund’. 
This will fund the five ‘shovel ready’ projects outlined below creating 818 new jobs and 
safeguarding a further 43. 
The projects will assist 960 businesses and a further £4.875million will be leveraged from 
both the public and private sector.

 The Minster Exchange – Cheltenham Borough Council approved an additional £995k 
of capital funding on 19th July to support delivery of the project (additional funds to 
cover unbudgeted material cost increases and increase to scope of works to public 
realm areas). The contract has been placed with Workshop Group for the full design 
and build elements of the project. Project now confident to complete build in April 
2022.

 AccXel Constructions Skills Centre in Cinderford – work progressing well on site, 
expected to open December 2021.

 The Gloucestershire Applied Digital Skills Centre with Cirencester College – 
construction work is progressing well, on track to open in January 2022.

 Cyber Incubator Units at Gloucestershire College, Cheltenham – construction is 
proceeding rapidly on site, expected to be complete late August in time for opening 
during September 2021.

 ‘The Digital Innovation Farm’ with Hartpury University – planning approval has 
been received and contract for groundworks has now been let. Final design work 
with container supplier in progress, expect to place contract August/September 
2021. Planning for initial opening in November 2021.

Local Growth Fund

 Gloucester Railway Station – Final design and full costing expected to be agreed in 
September 2021. Full GWR internal sign-off scheduled for October 2021, with work 
to start Nov/Dec 2021. Planned completion of works now Oct 2022.

 Gloucestershire Airport Anson Park – contract has now been let for the construction 
works.

Page 27



 Gloucester SW Bypass – land acquisitions expected to be completed by end of 
September 2021 with revised planning application also expected to be determined 
by end of September. Demolition expected to start late 2021 with highways work 
starting in early 2022.

 Growth Hub Network – the Forest of Dean Growth Hub opened with a ‘soft launch’ 
in July and an official launch scheduled for October 2021.
The Cheltenham Growth Hub now operating as a Virtual Hub until March/April 2022 
when it will operate physically from the Minster Exchange. 

 A40 Innsworth Gateway – construction progressing on site, main Eastbound 
carriageway diversion expected October 2021 onto new roundabout. Completion 
expected January 2022.

 West Cheltenham Transport Scheme – Phases 1&2 expected to complete in 
September 2021. Phases 3 & 4 due to complete March 2022. A forecast underspend 
of c£1.7million on the main WCTIS scheme is being re-allocated to support delivery 
of the Walking and Cycling infrastructure along the B4063 to the Staverton M5 
bridge. Work to run in parallel with main scheme with completion forecast March 
2022.

For further more detailed information on any of these projects please go to GFirst LEP’s 
website; http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/

4) ‘Additional Restrictions Grant - ARG’ (Discretionary scheme) 

The Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) is part of central Government’s support to 
businesses as part of their Covid response. All six of our local authorities have received their 
allocation.

It was agreed earlier this year that all six local authorities would pool together for a 
campaign to offer grants (of up to £3,000) to SMEs evenly spread across the county to help 
get more of them online and more importantly trading online. The LEP has co-ordinated the 
project taking on a new Project Manager, Matt Rigby to run it.

Total investment – £360,000 (split equally across 6 Local Authorities = £60,000 per Local 
Authority)

As you would imagine the grants proved popular and in total 107 grants have now been 
awarded to businesses across the county. Those businesses receiving grants will also need 
to attend at least one workshop (e.g. social media, brand management, cyber awareness 
etc.) thereby offering a complete package of support.

Job Prospects - out of 107 grants awarded:

 73 businesses stated that 153 jobs could be safe-guarded as a result of the grant 
investment. 

 61 businesses stated that 102 new jobs could be created.

Page 28

http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/


Growth Hub Prospects

 From the total applications, 147 new leads have been created for The Growth Hub 
Network.

The grants were distributed across the county as follows;

 
Total number of grants awarded Total amount of grants awarded

Cheltenham Borough Council 17 £49,325

Cotswold District Council 18 £51,410

Forest of Dean District Council 18 £50,689

Gloucester City Council 17 £50,213

Stroud District Council 18 £48,689

Tewkesbury Borough Council 19 £49,971

   

 107 £300,297

 – 17
Due to the success of the project and the demand form local businesses we are currently 
exploring with S151 Officers whether there is the potential to continue and indeed enhance 
the grants scheme.

Page 29



5) Tourism sector update

The LEP’s Visitor Economy & Tourism Business Group continues to focus on three key 
priorities;

 Work collaboratively on the Countywide Tourism Strategy produced earlier this year, that 
identified the county’s challenges and opportunities for visitor economy growth.

 Identify and co-ordinate appropriate funding opportunities as they arise and facilitate bids 
as appropriate.

 To ensure that each and every part of the county is represented on the Business Group, and 
that all appropriate measures are being taken to ensure they are being promoted as tourist 
destinations according to their offering.

Forthcoming campaigns co-ordinated by the Visit Gloucestershire Partnership include;

 Rise of the Staycation - promoting staycation ideas across the county – things to do 
and places to stay. 

 How to spend an unforgettable week in Gloucestershire - demonstrating how you 
can spend more than 1 or 2 nights in Gloucestershire.

 Targeted Social Media Campaigns - pushing posts to wider markets in the North and 
South East to push Summer Staycation ideas, why Visit Gloucestershire, places to see 
and things to do when in the area. 

Coming soon… 

 Gloucestershire Day 
 Staying Safe
 Autumn Staycation 
 A Taste of Gloucestershire
 Gloucestershire in the Winter
 Staying Connected
 Getting to & from Gloucestershire
 It’s Time to Charge Up

Page 30



The Group is chaired by Steve Gardner-Collins, Director and Chair of The Visit 
Gloucestershire Partnership.

Members of the LEP’s Visitor Economy & Tourism Business Group;

Andy Parsons - Cotswold National Landscape
Matthew Lee/Will Foster - Cotswold Canals Trust
Michael Studden - Cotswold Edge and Severn Vale Tourism Network
Chris Jackson/Sally Graff - Cotswolds & West Oxfordshire Tourism
Helen O'Kane - Forest of Dean and Wye Valley Tourism
Rebecca Clay - Gloucester City Council
Hannah McDonnell - Gloucestershire Community Rail Partnership
Richard Wakeford - Gloucestershire Market Towns Forum
David Jackson/Tara Sanchez - Marketing Cheltenham
Brendan Cleere/Amy Beckett - Stroud District Council
Andy Sanders/Rachel Thatcher - Tewkesbury Borough Council
Dr Alan Marvell - University of Gloucestershire

7) New Cyber sector advert

Working closely with all partners highlighted in the advert, the LEP has produced a new 

advert to highlight the strength of the cyber/digital sector in the county.

Page 31



Page 32



Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool Update AGENDA NO: 

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee, Sep 2021

Report author Andrew Cummings – Strategic Director of Resources
Stroud District Council
Email: andrew.cummings@stroud.gov.uk

Background 
documents

Report to GEGJC June 2021

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

N/A 

Main consultees Gloucestershire Chief Financial Officers

Planned dates N/A

Purpose of report

1. To update members of the committee on the outturn of the 2020/21 
Business Rates Pool and the estimated balance of the SEDF;

2. To consider the anticipated position of the pool and SEDF balance for 
2021/22

Recommendations
The Committee:
1. Note the forecast position of the Business Rates Pool and estimated 

balance for the SEDF

Reasons for 
recommendations

To update the Committee on the forecast for the Business Rates Pool

Resource 
Implications

There are no resource implications to implementing this recommendation.  

Page 33

Agenda Item 8

mailto:andrew.cummings@stroud.gov.uk


Background 
1. Gloucestershire continues to operate a business rates pool under the 50% rates 

retention system.  This pooling generates a saving in the levy returned to Central 
Government which is then distributed amongst Gloucestershire authorities.

2. The last update report to this Committee predicted that there would be a gain from the 
pool to the Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF) of £790k in 2020/21 as part 
of a total pool benefit of £3.95 million.  It was noted that this estimate was based on the 
year-end figures for only some of the billing authorities, as a result of the timing of year 
end processes for District Councils
2020/21 Pool Outturn

3. All of the billing authorities have now completed their draft year-end accounts. Business 
rates figures have been produced which allow the calculation of the pool outturn for the 
year.  All figures are subject to audit and the final pool position will then be confirmed by 
MHCLG, likely in early 2022.  All figures should be regarded as provisional until that 
point. 

4. All authorities had higher retained rates than Central Government baselines resulting in 
an overall gain for the pool.  The original baselines and the calculated retained growth 
for each authority are shown in the table below.

Table 1 – Business Rates Growth 2020/21

Authority

Baseline
£m

Retained Rates
£m

Growth
£m

Growth 
(Previous 

Year)
£m

Cheltenham 2.84 4.15 1.31 1.63
Cotswold 1.88 3.99 2.11 2.68
Forest of Dean 2.59 3.85 1.26 0.93
Gloucester 3.70 6.26 2.56 3.25
Stroud 2.47 4.33 1.86 2.85
Tewkesbury 1.85 4.39 2.54 4.31
Gloucestershire 75.77 78.23 2.46 3.75
Total Pool Growth 91.10 105.19 14.09 19.40

5. Retained rates are not the actual rates collected by authorities, but the final figures 
used in the levy/safety net calculations as set out in regulations by central government.

6. The gain at Tewkesbury in the prior year was higher than normal as a result of 
adjustments relating to historic appeals. This should be borne in mind when comparing 
2020/21 and 2019/20.

Page 34



7. The retained rates figure for 2020/21 includes amounts of central government grant 
compensating authorities for business rate holidays granted to businesses during the 
pandemic. The amount of Covid reliefs through rates holidays granted to businesses in 
the County is shown in Table 2.

Table 2 –Covid Reliefs granted

Authority
Covid Reliefs

£m

Cheltenham 34.82
Cotswold 18.71
Forest of Dean 4.22
Gloucester 28.02
Stroud 11.49
Tewkesbury 11.05
Total Covid Reliefs 108.32

8. The pooling system allows the total growth to be combined and a pool levy to be 
calculated.  In practice this means that a lower level of growth is returned to central 
government through the levy system than would otherwise have been the case.  In 
2020/21 the levy to be returned has been calculated as £2.16 million as opposed to 
£5.82 million which would have been returned without pooling.

9. This therefore creates a pool gain of £3.66 million which is nearly identical to the last 
full monitoring position reported to this committee at Quarter 3 (£3.71m).   This has 
been shared amongst the SEDF, County Council and District Councils in the following 
proportions as per the original pooling agreement.

Table 3 – Allocation of 2020/21 Pool Gain

Distribution
2020/21 
Outturn

Strategic Economic Development Fund (as administered 
by GEGJC) £731k

District Councils £2.34m
County Council £585k
Total Pool Gain £3.656m

Page 35



2021/22 Forecasts
10.As in previous years District Councils are carrying out monitoring of the in-year 

business rates position. This monitoring has been brought together to develop an 
estimated position for the Pool in this report.

11.The biggest impact of Covid-19 upon business rates collection continues to be business 
rates discounts for the retail, leisure and hospitality industries. For eligible businesses 
the 100% discount was extended to 30th June 2021 with a 66% discount then in place 
for the rest of this financial year.  As with last year there is no financial impact on the 
pool itself as any discount given to businesses is compensated to billing authorities, in 
the form of a central government grant. 

12.Another process continuing from last year is that Districts will be carefully monitoring 
where such businesses have closed as a result of the pandemic, as the reimbursement 
grant is then no longer received from central government. Therefore, the rates would be 
lost both from the individual authority and of course the pool gain. 

13.At the end of 2020/21, across the County, districts raised the level of provisions for 
potential future uncollectable debts based upon the increased level of arrears they were 
recording for business rates.  This helps to protect the pool position. There remains a 
risk that further increases will be needed as the path of economic recovery is not 
certain. Districts continue to monitor this position and any significant changes will be 
reported in future updates.

14.Taking all of this into account there is still an estimated pool gain of £4.238million in the 
current year. The distribution of this estimated benefit is set out in the table below.

Table 4 – Estimated Pool Gain in 2021/22

Distribution
21/22 
Forecast

Strategic Economic Development Fund (as administered 
by GEGJC) £848k

District Councils £2.71m
County Council £680k
Total Pool Gain £4.238m

15.This gain is obviously subject to significant potential fluctuation and therefore should not 
be factored into any resource allocation decisions at this point.

Future of the Business Rates Pool

16.As has previously been reported to this Committee, the long-term future of the Pool is 
dependent on potential government reforms to both business rates as a taxation 
system and the wider system of local government funding. There are no further updates 

Page 36



on either issue at the time of writing and therefore 2021/22 is still considered to be the 
last year of SEDF funding. This will be updated in future reports to the Committee as 
required.

17.Appendix A shows the current overall estimated position on the SEDF. The allocation of 
resources includes the £1.8 million agreed in June of this year for strategic planning.

Risk Assessment
18.Significant risks remain around the level of business rates income and arrears in the 

pandemic recovery. This is mitigated by the current high level of estimated pool gain 
which is likely to be enough to absorb any future reductions in rates income without 
putting the pool into deficit.

Officer Advice
19. No officer advice required

Equalities considerations
20. There are no equalities considerations associated with this decision. It is purely a 
       financial consideration.

Consultation feedback
21.  Each of the Business Rates Pool members has been consulted about this report.

Performance Management/follow-up
22. Further update reports on the current position and future outlook of the pool will be 
presented to this committee.

Page 37



Appendix A
Projected Balance of the SEDF

GEGJC 
Decision 
Date

2018/19
(£’000)

2019/20
(£’000)

2020/21
(£’000)

2021/22
(£’000)

2022/23
(£’000)

Item 

Funding
SEDF Balance b/f
2017/18 Pool (confirmed)
2018/19 Pilot Gain (confirmed)
Pool Gain (indicative)
SEDF Funding

Allocations
Operating Costs for Joint 
Committee
LEP Core Funding (Match)

LEP/LA Inward Investment 
Programme (EU Match)

J.10 Business Case Commission 
(contribution)

Economic Intelligence Data
Commissioning Fund

Rail Investment Strategy 

LNP Capital Mapping

Cyber Central

City Region Board

Strategic Plan for Growth

Total Allocations

Nov 17

Nov 
17/Feb 
20/

Nov 17

Nov 18

Nov 18

Sept 19

Feb 20

Nov 
19/Jan21

June 21

336
828

3,438

4,602

(4)

(250)

(75)

(275)

0

0

(604)

3,998

970
4,968

0

(250)

0

0

0

(16)

(40)

(100)

0

(406)

4,562

731
5,293

(5)

(250)

0

0

0

(3)

0

(100)

(410)

(768)

4,525

848
5,373

(5)

(250)

0

0

(50)

(51)

0

(100)

(1,590)

(1,800)

(3,846)

1,527

0
1,527

(5)

(250)

0

0

0

0

0

(100)

0

0

(355)

SEDF Balance c/f 3,998 4,562 4,525 1,527 1,172

Page 38



Notes
 SEDF balance held and accounted for by Gloucestershire County Council

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2021/22

Meeting Date Subject Purpose Key Notes/Actions 

15 September 2021 Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Update 

Standing item

Gloucestershire Covid-19 
Economy Recovery Plan, to 
include update on the 
Community Renewal Fund bid, 
and districts to update verbally 
on the outcome of Levelling Up 
bids (if possible)

Standing item

Business Rates Pool including 
updates on the performance of 
SEDF/bid proposals from the 
SOG

Standing item/information report plus 
possible requests (key decisions) for SEDF 
funding bids (proposed/assessed by the 
SOG)

Possible key 
decisions

GFirst LEP Update including 
update on the tourism strategy.

Standing item

Forward Plan including 
emerging SEDF proposals

Standing item

Exploring the challenges and 
opportunities of the land-based 
and agricultural sector (Tamsyn 
Harrod-Beck/ Lizzie Dyer – 
Boom Circle)

Information/ discussion item 

17 November 2021 Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Update

Standing item 

Review of Gloucestershire 
Covid-19 Economy Recovery 
Plans (All councils to provide 
brief reviews of their plans).

Standing item

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 9



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2021/22

GFirst LEP Update, including an 
update on the Government’s 
review of LEPs 

Standing item 

Business Rates Pool including 
updates on the performance of 
SEDF/bid proposals from the 
SOG

Standing item/information report plus 
possible requests (key decisions) for SEDF 
funding bids (proposed/assessed by the 
SOG)

SEDF funding request to investigate options 
to better connect Kemble Train Centre to 
Cirencester Town Centre. 

Possible key 
decisions

Forward Plan including 
emerging SEDF proposals

Standing item 

Employment and Skills Strategy 
(Pete Carr)

Information item

Skills Landscape and Emerging 
Policy Changes

Information item

Green Skills and Jobs Discussion item
Update on Strategic Planning in 
Gloucestershire

Annual item 

Statement of Common Ground 
Action Plan  (Tracey Crews)

Information item 

16 March 2022 Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Update

Standing item

GFirst LEP Update Standing item

Business Rates Pool including 
updates on the performance of 
SEDF/bid proposals from the 
SOG

Standing item/information report plus 
possible requests (key decisions) for SEDF 
funding bids (proposed/assessed by the 
SOG)

Possible key 
decisions

Forward Plan including Standing item

P
age 42



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2021/22

emerging SEDF proposals?
Broadband in the County Information item 

Future Items
UK Shared Prosperity Fund 
(Autumn 2021)

Information item

Gloucestershire Growth Hub 
Network

Information item/Activity report

Business Rates Pooling in 
Gloucestershire for future years

Information item/ possible decision (Andrew 
Cummings)

Health inequality within 
Gloucestershire and its impact 
on economic growth.

Information item

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	GEGJC Action Sheet - 9 June 2021

	5 Overview of Gloucestershire's Farming and Food Sector
	7 GFirst LEP Update
	8 Business Rate Pool
	9 Forward (Work) Plan

